
Dated 03-04-16 

Village of Mukwonago 
REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 
Tuesday, March 8, 2016 

 
Time:   6:30 p.m.  
Place:  Mukwonago Municipal Building/Board Room, 440 River Crest Court  
 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
2. Roll Call  

 
3. Approval of minutes for the February 9, 2016 regular meeting  

 
4. New Business 

Discussion and Possible Action on the Following Item 
 

A. Historic Preservation review and approval – Request by Jason Collins, Country Financial, 
to install wall sign at the property located at 108 Main St. 

B. Discussion about Historic Preservation standards 
C. Update Comprehensive Plan Public Participation Plan 
 

5. Adjournment  
 

It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of, members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at 
the above stated meeting to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of individuals with disabilities through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, contact the 
Clerk’s Office, 440 River Crest Court, (262) 363-6420, Option 4. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
February 9, 2016  Plan Commission Minutes 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, February 9, 2016 
 
Call to Order  
Chairperson Fred Winchowky called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. located in the Board 
Room of the Mukwonago Municipal Building, 440 River Crest Ct. 

 
Roll Call  
Commissioners present: Joe Hankovich 
    Sterling Fairchild 
    John Meiners 

Ken Werner 
Mark Penzkover 
Joe Abruzzo 

    Fred Winchowky 
Also present:   Judith Taubert, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 
 
Minutes 
Motion by Werner/Abruzzo to approve the January 12, 2016 regular meeting minutes as 
presented carried.  

 
Public Hearings 
Conditional use permit requested by Jessica L. Ballard, Tri Skill Community Day Program, to 
allow for an adult day care program on the property located at 231 Roberts Drive, known as 
MUKV1974906 opened at 6:31p.m. 
 
Jessica Ballard explained the reason for the conditional use to allow for an adult day care 
program on the property located at 231 Roberts Drive, First Congregational Church.  
 
Judy Martin, 121 MacArthur Drive, had questions that were addressed, 
Harlan Petersen, 231 Roberts Drive, spoke in favor of the Community Adult Day Care. 
Kevin Clark, 201 Roberts Drive, spoke in favor of the adult day care program.   
Diane Williams, 201 W. Parkview, Eagle, WI, spoke in favor of the adult day care program. 
 
Public hearing closed at 6:40 p.m. 
 
New Business 

Tri Skill Community Day Program 
Motion by Abruzzo/Werner to Recommend the Village Board approve the conditional use 
permit requested by Jessica L. Ballard, Tri Skill Community Day Program, to allow for an 
adult day care program on the property located at 231 Roberts Drive, known as 
MUKV1974906 subject to the 4 findings and 8 conditions in the Village Planners letter dated 
February 4, 2016: 
 
Findings: 
1. The use of the structure is in accordance with the purpose and intent of the R-2, Single   

Family Village Residential District. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
February 9, 2016  Plan Commission Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

 

2. The use of the structure is found not to be hazardous, harmful, offensive or adverse to 
the environment or value of the neighborhood and the Village of Mukwonago. 

3. The use of the structure does not change the character of the neighborhood. 
4. The use of the structure supports a public community purpose. 
 
Terms of Approval: 
1. The use within First Congregational Church of Mukwonago, 231 Roberts Drive, by 

TriSkill Community Day Program shall be operated in strict conformance with the 
petitioner’s public hearing presentation, and the information submitted on the Request for 
a Conditional Use Application, especially the description of the use. 

2. The conditional use is granted solely to the TriSkill Community Day Program operated by       
Jessica Ballard, and is not transferrable, as a private school allowed as a conditional use 
in the R-2 zoning district of the Village of Mukwonago, allowed within a church that is 
also a conditional use in the R-2 zoning district. Nothing in this conditional use shall 
prohibit another owner to petition the Village for a new conditional use should a change 
in ownership occur. 

3. The use of the building for TriSkill Community Day Program shall be limited to the class 
room space on the 1st floor (handicapped accessible) portion of the building. Should 
other levels of the building become handicapped accessible, nothing in this conditional 
use shall prohibit a petition to the Village for an amended conditional use for utilization of 
another level. 

4. The use of the building for TriSkill Community Day Program is not to be a place of 
assembly. 

5. No part of the site or structure shall be utilized as residential or overnight sleeping 
quarters or accommodations. 

6. The conditional use shall be renewed by the Plan Commission and the Village Board 
within one (1) year of approval, with a second one (1) renewal, and then subsequent five 
(5) year renewals. Renewal of the conditional use shall be granted if the use of property 
and structure are found to be operation in accordance with terms of approval of this 
conditional use. Findings of nonconformance shall be grounds for termination of this 
conditional use. 

7. The use of the structure shall conform at all times with building codes and fire safety 
codes. The use shall be subject to periodical inspections by the Mukwonago Fire 
Department and Village of Mukwonago Building Inspection and/or Zoning Administrator 
staff. 

8. The use of the structure shall conform at all times with federal, state and local laws. 
 

Planner’s Report 
Comprehensive Plan Update 
Planner submitted proposed schedule with time to be set to be followed after the Village 
President’s appointments on February 16th Regular Village Board Meeting. 

 
Adjournment  
Meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Judith A. Taubert 
Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 













Milwaukee

PLEASE CHECK ALL PROOFS FOR ACCURATE SPELLING, PUNCTUATION AND LAYOUT.
Signarama will not be held responsible for correcting mistakes on approved artwork.

414.273.7446

www.milwaukee-signs.com

christa@milwaukee-signs.com

 Customer: Country Financial Insurance (Jason Collins)
 Salesperson: Christa Neill
 Designer: Sarah Schauf
 Proof Date: 02/10/16

66”w x 18.13”h
custom plotter-cut adhesive vinyl

applied to router-cut 3mm max metal alumapanel material
mounted to exterior face of building

Vinyl Graphics

Max Metal Substrate

66”w

66”w

18.13”

18.13”

COUNTRY FINANCIAL INSURANCE
Exterior Business Logo SignCOLORS USED

CF Dk Green

C: 100 M: 0 Y: 78 K: 42

C: 0 M: 0 Y:  0 K:  0



 

 

DATE:  March 2, 2016 
TO:       Village President Fred Winchowky and Plan Commission Members 
FROM:  Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner  
RE:          Historic Preservation Standards/Article III of Zoning Ordinance 
 
Circa 2008, at the direction of the former Village President the Plan Commission took on the 
responsibilities of the Historic Preservation Commission.   In the next month or so, the Plan Commission 
will review (pending submittal of an application) a proposal to raze a downtown building and construct a 
new building in its place.   Because of the potential application, I reviewed Article III of the Zoning 
Ordinance that outlined the duties and responsibilities of the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 
Therefore, the purpose of this agenda topic is to start discussion regarding the Plan Commission’s role in 
historic preservation and the extent of architectural review within the downtown area.  Article III does 
not specifically provide standards for architectural review.  
 
Article III is attached for your perusal.    In addition, amongst numerous recent approved bills by the 
State legislature I am tracking that impacts municipal planning and zoning, Governor Walker just signed 
a bill requiring notification to property owners prior to designation of a historic building or district.  
Article III requires notification, but we may need to adjust the language for the notification timeframe 
per the new law (AB568/SB445). 
 
Cc: John Weidl, Village Administrator 
 Steve Braatz, Jr., Village Clerk 
 Joe Hankovich, Supervisor of Inspections 
 Bob Harley, Codes Official 
 Mark Blum, Village Attorney 
 Aaron Kramer, Economic Development Intern 
 



1 
 

ARTICLE III. - HISTORIC PRESERVATION  

 

  Sec. 100-301. - Purpose and intent.    It is hereby declared a matter of public policy that the 

protection, enhancement, perpetuation and use of improvements or sites of special character or 

special architectural or historic interest or value is a public necessity and is required in the 

interest of the health, prosperity, safety and welfare of the people. The purpose of this article is 

to:  

(1) Effect and accomplish the protection, enhancement and perpetuation of such improvements, 

sites and districts which represent or reflect elements of the village's cultural, social, economic, 

political and architectural history.  

(2) Safeguard the village's historic and cultural heritage, as embodied and reflected in such 

historic structures, sites and districts.  

(3) Foster civic pride in the notable accomplishments of the past. 

(4) Stabilize and improve property values. 

(5) Protect and enhance the village's attractions to residents, tourists and visitors, and serve as a 

support and stimulus to business and industry.  

(6) Improve and enhance the visual and aesthetic character of the village. 

(7) Educate the public regarding the need and desirability of a village historic preservation 

program and its enhancement of the quality of life.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1101), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-302. - Definitions.    Definitions shall be as follows or as set forth in section 100-29:  

Certificate of appropriateness means the certificate issued by the commission approving 

alteration, rehabilitation, construction, reconstruction or demolition of a historic structure, 

historic site or any improvement in a historic district.  

Commission means the historic preservation commission created under this article.  

Historic district shall be as set forth in section 100-29.  

Historic site means any parcel of land of historic significance due to substantial value in tracing 

the history or prehistory of man, or upon which a historic event has occurred, and which has 

been designated as a historic site under this article, or an improvement parcel, or part thereof, on 

which is situated a historic structure and any abutting improvement parcel, or part thereof, used 

as and constituting part of the premises on which the historic structure is situated.  

Historic structure shall be as set forth in section 100-29.  

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


2 
 

Improvement means any building, structure, place, work of art or other object constituting a 

physical betterment of real property, or any part of such betterment, including streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, curbs, lighting fixtures, signs and the like.  

Improvement parcel is the unit of property which includes a physical betterment constituting an 

improvement and the land embracing the site thereof, and is treated as a single entity for the 

purpose of levying real estate taxes. Provided, however, that the term "improvement parcel" shall 

also include any unimproved area of land which is treated as a single entity for such tax 

purposes.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1102), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-303. - Historic preservation commission composition.    A historic preservation 

commission is hereby created, consisting of seven members. Of the membership, if available in 

the community, one shall be a registered architect; one shall be a historian; one shall be a 

licensed real estate broker; one shall be a village board member; and three shall be citizen 

members. Each member shall have, to the highest extent practicable, a known interest in historic 

preservation. The village president shall appoint the commissioners subject to confirmation by 

the village board. Of the initial members so appointed, two shall serve a term of one year, two 

shall serve a term of two years, and three shall serve a term of three years. Thereafter, the term 

for each member shall be three years.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1103), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-304. - Historic structure, historic site and historic district designation criteria.  

  (a) For purposes of this chapter, a historic structure, historic site, or historic district 

designation may be placed on any site, natural or improved, including any building, 

improvement or structure located thereon, or any area of particular historic, architectural, 

archeological or cultural significance to the village such as historic structures, sites, or districts 

which:  

(1) Exemplify or reflect the broad cultural, political, economic or social history of the nation, 

state or community; or  

(2) Are identified with historic personages or with important events in national, state or local 

history; or  

(3) Embody the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type or specimen inherently 

valuable for a study of a period, style, method of construction, or of indigenous materials or 

craftsmanship; or  

(4)  Are representative of the notable work of a master builder, designer or architect who 

influenced his age; or  

(5) Have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important to prehistory or history. 



3 
 

(b) The commission may adopt specific operating guidelines for historic structure, historic site 

and historic district designation, providing such are in conformance with the provisions of this 

chapter.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1104), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-305. - Powers and duties.  

 

 (a) Designation. The commission shall have the power, subject to section 100-311, to designate 

historic structures and historic sites and to recommend designation of historic districts within the 

village limits. Such designations shall be made based on section 100-309. Historic districts shall 

be subject to all the provisions of this chapter.  

(b) Regulation of construction, reconstruction, alteration and demolition.  

(1) No owner or person in charge of a historic structure, historic site or structure within a historic 

district shall reconstruct, alter or demolish all or any part of the exterior of such property or 

construct any improvement upon such designated property or properties or cause or permit any 

such work to be performed upon such property or demolish such property unless a certificate of 

appropriateness has been granted by the historic preservation commission. Unless such 

certificate has been granted by the commission, the building inspector shall not issue a permit for 

any such work.  

(2)Upon filing of any application for a certificate of appropriateness with the commission, the 

commission shall approve the application unless:  

a. In the case of a designated historic structure or historic site, the proposed work would 

detrimentally change, destroy or adversely affect any exterior architectural feature of the 

improvement or site upon which such work is to be done;  

b. In the case of the construction of a new improvement upon a historic site, or within a historic 

district, the exterior of such improvement would adversely affect or not harmonize with the 

external appearance of the other neighboring improvements on such site or within the district;  

c. In the case of any property located in a historic district, the proposed construction, 

reconstruction, exterior alteration or demolition does not conform to the purpose and intent of 

this chapter and to the objectives and design criteria of the historic preservation plan for such 

district;  

d. The building or structure is of such architectural or historical significance that its demolition 

would be detrimental to the public interest and contrary to the general welfare of the people of 

the village and state;  

e. The building or structure is of such old and unusual or uncommon design, texture, and/or 

material that it could not be reproduced without great difficulty and/or expense;  

https://www.municode.com/library/


4 
 

f. In the case of a request for a demolition permit, the denial of the permit would result in the loss 

of all reasonable and beneficial use of or return from the property; or  

g.  In the case of a request for the demolition of a deteriorated building or structure, any hardship 

or difficulty claimed by the owner is self-created or is the result of any failure to maintain the 

property in good repair;  

h.  The owner of the historic property submits information that the denial of the certificate of 

appropriateness will deprive the owner of all reasonable use of, or economic return on, the 

property.  

(3) In addition, in determining whether to issue a certificate of appropriateness, the commission 

shall consider and may give decisive weight to any or all of the following standards:  

a. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires 

minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.  

b. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.  

c. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

d.  Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in 

their own right shall be retained and preserved.  

e. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a property shall be preserved.  

f. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in 

design, color, texture and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 

missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical or pictorial evidence.  

g. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

h. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If 

such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

i. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its 

environment would be unimpaired.  



5 
 

(4)  If the commission determines that the application for a certificate of appropriateness and the 

proposed changes are consistent with the character and features of the property or district, and 

with the above guidelines, it shall issue the certificate of appropriateness. Upon the issuance of 

such certificate, the building permit shall then be issued by the building inspector. The 

commission shall make this decision within 45 days of the filing of the application.  

(5)  Agencies of the village and all public utility and transportation companies, undertaking 

projects affecting historic structures, historic sites or historic districts, shall be required to obtain 

a certificate of appropriateness prior to initiating any changes in the character of street paving, 

sidewalks, utility installations, lighting, walls, fences, structures and buildings on property, 

easements or streets owned or franchised by the village.  

(6)  The issuance of a certificate of appropriateness shall not relieve the applicant from obtaining 

other permits and approvals required by the village. A building permit or other municipal permit 

shall be invalid if it is obtained without the presentation of the certificate of appropriateness 

required for the proposed work. Insofar as they are applicable to a historic structure, historic site 

or improvement in a historic district designated under this article, any provision of the plumbing 

code, electrical code, or building or housing code of the village shall apply, unless waived by the 

appropriate state or village appeals body.  

(7) Compliance with certificates of appropriateness shall be started within 12 months after the 

issuance of the certificate, and the work shall conform to the provisions of the certificate. The 

village may inspect the work during and after construction in order to assure compliance. Failure 

to comply with a certificate of appropriateness or failure to obtain a certificate of appropriateness 

shall be a violation of this article. In addition to the other penalties and remedies, the village shall 

issue a stop work order, and all work shall cease on the designated property. No additional work 

shall be undertaken as long as such stop work order shall continue in effect.  

(8) Ordinary maintenance and repairs may be undertaken without a certificate of appropriateness, 

provided that the work involves repairs to existing features of a historic structure or site or the 

replacement of elements of a structure with pieces identical in appearance and provided that the 

work does not change the exterior appearance of the structure or site and does not require the 

issuance of a building permit.  

(c) Appeals. Should the commission fail to issue a certificate of appropriateness due to the failure 

of the proposal to conform to the guidelines, the applicant may appeal such decision to the 

village board within 30 days. In addition, if the commission fails to issue a certificate of 

appropriateness, the commission shall, with the cooperation of the applicant, work with the 

applicant in an attempt to obtain a certificate of appropriateness within the guidelines of this 

article.  

(d) Recognition of historic structures, sites and districts. At such time as a historic structure, site 

or district has been properly designated, the commission may cause to be prepared and erected 

on such property at village expense a suitable plaque declaring that such property is a historic 

structure, site or district. Such plaque shall be so placed as to be easily visible to passing 



6 
 

pedestrians. The plaque shall state the accepted name of the historic property, the date of its 

construction of significance, and other information deemed proper by the commission.  

(e) Other duties. In addition to those duties already specified in this article, the commission shall:  

(1) Work for the continuing education of the citizens about the historical heritage of the village 

and the historic properties designated under the provision of this article.  

(2) Cooperate with the State of Wisconsin historic preservation officer and the state historic 

preservation review board in attempting to include such properties hereunder designated as 

landmarks or landmark sites, or historic districts in the National Register of Historic Places and 

the state register of historic places.  

(3) As it deems advisable, receive and solicit funds for the purpose of historic preservation in the 

village. Such funds shall be placed in a special village account for such purpose.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1105), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-306. - Procedures.   

 

 (a) Designation of historic structures and historic sites.  

(1) The commission may, after notice and public hearing, designate historic structures and 

historic sites, or rescind such designation or recommendation, after application of the criteria in 

section 100-304 above. At least ten days prior to such hearing, the commission shall notify the 

owners of record, as listed in the office of the village assessor, who are owners of property in 

whole or in part situated within 200 feet of the boundaries of the property affected. These owners 

shall have the right to confer with the commission prior to final action by the commission on the 

designation. Notice of such hearing shall also be published as Class 1 notice, under the 

Wisconsin Statutes. The commission shall also notify the following: department of public works, 

parks division, fire and police departments, health department, building inspector, and plan 

commission. Each such department may respond to the commission with its comments on the 

proposed designation or rescission.  

(2) The commission shall then conduct such public hearing and, in addition to the notified 

persons, may hear expert witnesses and shall have the power to subpoena such witnesses and 

records as it deems necessary. The commission may conduct an independent investigation into 

the proposed designation or rescission. Within ten days after the close of the public hearing, the 

commission may designate the property as either a historic structure or historic site, or rescind 

the designation. After the designation or rescission has been made, notification shall be sent to 

the property owner or owners. Notification shall also be given to the village clerk, building 

inspector, plan commission, and the village assessor. The commission shall cause the designation 

or rescission to be recorded, at village expense, in the county register of deeds office, or the 

recommendation to be submitted to the village board as provided by subsection 100-309(c).  

(b) Designation of historic districts.  

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


7 
 

(1) For preservation purposes, the historic preservation commission shall select geographically 

defined areas within the village to be designated as historic districts and shall, with the assistance 

of the plan commission, prepare a historic preservation plan in ordinance form for each area. A 

historic district may be designated for any geographic area of particular historic, architectural or 

cultural significance to the village which:  

a. Exemplifies or reflects the broad cultural, political, economic or social history of the nation, 

state or community; or  

b. Is identified with historic personages or with important events in national, state or local 

history; or  

c. Embodies the distinguishing characteristics of architectural types or specimens inherently 

valuable for the study of a period or periods, styles, methods or construction, or of indigenous 

materials or craftsmanship; or  

d. Is representative of the notable works of master builders, designers or architects who 

influenced their age;  

e. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important to history or prehistory. 

(2) Guideline criteria to be considered in the development of historic district plans are as follows:  

a. Regulation of construction, reconstruction, alteration and demolition shall conform to the 

criteria and standards in section 100-305(b)(1), (2) and (3).  

b. All new structures shall be constructed to a height visually compatible with the building and 

environment with which they are visually related.  

c. The gross volume of any new structure shall be visually compatible with the buildings and 

environment with which it is visually related.  

d. In the street elevation of a building, the proportion between the width and height in the facade 

shall be visually compatible with the building and environment with which it is visually related.  

e. The proportions and relationships between doors and windows in the street facade should be 

visually compatible with the buildings and environment with which it is visually related.  

f. The rhythm of solids to voids, created by openings in the facade, should be visually compatible 

with the buildings and environment with which it is visually related.  

g. The existing rhythm created by existing building masses and spaces between them should be 

preserved.  

h. The materials used in the final facade should be visually compatible with the buildings and 

environment with which it is visually related.  

https://www.municode.com/library/


8 
 

i. The texture inherent in the facade should be visually compatible with the buildings and 

environment with which it is visually related.  

j. Colors and patterns used on the facade (especially trim) should be visually compatible with the 

buildings and environment with which it is visually related.  

k. The design of the roof should be visually compatible with the buildings and environment with 

which it is visually related.  

l. The landscape plan should be sensitive to the individual building, its occupants and their needs. 

Further, the landscape treatment should be visually compatible with the buildings and 

environment with which it is visually related.  

m. The street facade should blend with other buildings via directional expression. When adjacent 

buildings have a dominant horizontal or vertical expression, this expression should be carried 

over and reflected.  

n. Architectural elements should be incorporated as necessary to relate the new with the old and 

to preserve and enhance the inherent characteristics of the area.  

o. Each historic preservation plan prepared for or by the historic preservation commission shall 

include a cultural and architectural analysis supporting the historic significance of the area, the 

specific guidelines for development and a statement of preservation objectives.  

(3) Review and adoption procedure: 

a. Historic preservation commission. The historic preservation commission shall hold a public 

hearing when considering the plan for a historic district. Notice of the time, place and purpose of 

such hearing shall be given by publication as a Class 1 notice under the Wisconsin Statutes in the 

official village paper. Notice of the time, place and purpose of the public hearing shall also be 

sent by the village clerk to the owners of record, as listed in the office of the village assessor, 

who are owners of the property within the proposed historic district or are situated in whole or in 

part within 200 feet of the boundaries of the proposed historic district. Such notice is to be sent at 

least ten days prior to the date of the public hearing. Following the public hearing, the historic 

preservation commission shall vote to recommend, reject or withhold action on the plan. This 

recommendation shall be forwarded to the village plan commission and the village board.  

b. The village plan commission. The plan commission shall review the historic district plan and 

make a recommendation to the village board. The plan commission shall make its 

recommendation on the historic district plan within 30 days.  

c. The village board. The village board, upon receipt of the recommendations from the historic 

preservation commission and plan commission, shall hold a public hearing, notice to be given as 

noted in subparagraph a. above, and shall, following the public hearing, either designate or reject 

the historic district. Designation of the historic district shall constitute adoption of the plan in 

ordinance form prepared for that district and direct the implementation of such plan.  



9 
 

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1106), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-307. - Interim control.     No building permit shall be issued by the building inspector 

for alteration, construction, demolition or removal of a nominated historic structure, historic site, 

or any property or structure within a nominated historic district from the date of the meeting of 

the historic preservation commission at which a nomination form is first presented until the final 

disposition of the nomination by the historic preservation commission or the village board, 

unless such alteration, removal or demolition is authorized by formal resolution of the village 

board as necessary for public health, welfare or safety. In no event shall the delay be for more 

than 180 days.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1107), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-308. - Conformance with regulations.  

 (a) Every person in charge of a historic structure, historic site or improvement in a historic 

district shall maintain same or cause or permit it to be maintained in a condition consistent with 

the provisions of this article. The village board may appoint the building inspector or any other 

individual or group of individuals to enforce this article. The duties of the inspection officer shall 

include periodic inspection at intervals provided by the village board of designated historic 

structures, historic sites and historic districts. These inspections may include physical entry upon 

the property and improvement, with permission of the owner, to insure that interior alterations or 

maintenance will not jeopardize the exterior appearance or structural stability of the 

improvement. If an owner refuses permission for the enforcement officer to enter for purposes of 

inspection, the inspection officer may obtain a warrant of entry pursuant to W.S.A., § 66.122, 

and take any other reasonable measures to further enforcement of this article.  

(b) The purpose of this article is to prevent the demolition of a building or structure by 

neglecting it and permitting damage to it by weather or vandalism. Every person in charge of any 

improvement on a historic site or in a historic district shall keep in good repair all of the exterior 

portions of such improvement and all interior portions thereof which, if not so maintained, may 

cause or tend to cause the exterior portions of such improvement to fall into a state of disrepair, 

including but not limited to:  

(1) The deterioration of exterior walls or other vertical supports; 

(2) The deterioration of roofs or other horizontal members; 

(3) The deterioration of external chimneys; 

(4) The deterioration or crumbling of exterior plasters or mortar; 

(5) The ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls, roofs and foundations, including broken 

windows or doors;  

(6) The peeling of paint, rotting, holes and other forms of decay; 



10 
 

(7) The deterioration of surrounding environment, e.g., fences, gates, sidewalks, steps, signs, 

accessory structures and landscaping;  

(8) The deterioration of any features so as to create or permit the creation of any hazardous or 

unsafe condition or conditions;  

(9) All interior portions thereof which may cause the exterior to deteriorate or become damaged 

or otherwise to fall into a state of disrepair.  

(c) Insofar as they are applicable to a historic structure, historic site or improvement in a historic 

district designated under this article, any provision of the plumbing code, building code, heating, 

ventilating and air conditioning code, the outdoor signs and outdoor advertising ordinances, and 

regulations of the general ordinances may be varied or waived, on application, by the appropriate 

board having such jurisdiction over such chapter or, in the absence of such board, by the building 

inspector, provided such variance or waiver does not endanger public health or safety.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1108), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-309. - Penalties for violations.   Penalties for violations of this article shall be as set 

forth in section 100-27. If the violations remain uncorrected after the time specified in the notice, 

the village may, at its election, impose fines and/or have the violations corrected at village 

expense and have a lien placed against the property equal to the cost of the repairs, plus 

applicable fines and administrative costs.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1109), 2-6-96)  

  Sec. 100-310. - Emergency conditions.  In any case where the building inspector determines 

that there are emergency conditions dangerous to life, health or property affecting a historic 

structure, site or a property in a historic district, the building inspector may order the remedying 

of these conditions without approval of the commission. The building inspector shall promptly 

notify the commission of the action being taken. When the emergency conditions do not require 

demolition, the building inspector shall make every effort to carry out the intent of this article 

and to use the design guidelines of the commission when remedying the emergency conditions.  

(Ord. No. 572, § I(9.1110), 2-6-96)  

 

https://www.municode.com/library/


On February 16, 2016, the Village Board requested that two additional members be added to 
the Comp Plan Update Steering Committee.  Below is the amendment needed to the Comp Plan 
Public Participation Plan. 
 
Term #2 of the Public Participation Process 
 

2. To assist the Plan Commission, the Village President will appoint with confirmation by the 
Village Board a Comprehensive Plan Update Steering Committee (hereinafter called “the 
committee”).   The 11 13 member committee will consist of the following: 

 
a. Five Seven citizen members with the goal of getting representation from each of the 

following geographical areas of the Village: (1) downtown area; (2) north/northwest 
area; (3) northeast area; (4) southwest area; and (5) southeast area. The Village 
President will make his best effort to appoint a member from each of the five identified 
geographic areas; however, this is not a mandate. If there is an insufficient pool of 
candidates from one or more of the five identified geographic areas, the Village 
President will appoint a member(s) from one of the other areas. 

b. One member representing a small business in the Village. 
c. One member representing a large business in the Village. 
d. One member representing the Mukwonago Area Chamber of Commerce, as 

recommended by the Chamber of Commerce (Suggested to be a Village resident). 
e. One member representing the Mukwonago Area School District, as recommended by 

the School District (Suggested to be a Village resident). 
f. One citizen member of the Plan Commission. 
g. The Village President.  

 


	20160308PlanCommissionAgenda
	#03-MINUTES
	20160209PlanCommissionMinutesdraft

	#04-NEW BUSINESS
	108 Main St HPC Review
	Historic Preservation Standards
	Mukwonago 20160302 Hist Pres Memo to PC
	Mukwonago 20160302 Hist Pres Ordinance

	Public Participation Plan Amendment


